
Property / Regeneration Briefing 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Property / Regeneration Briefing to be held 
as follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Monday, 24 February 2020

TIME: 11.00 am

VENUE: Committee Room 1, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of interest 

3  Items for Decision - Part 1 (Open to the Public) 

3a Plot C1, Off Stanley Street, Ordsall (Pages 1 - 6)

4  Exclusion of the Public 

5  Items for Decision - Part 2 (Closed to the Public) 

5a Crescent and University Masterplan - Appointment of Private Sector 
Partner 

(Pages 7 - 8)

6  Any other business 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3013
Mike Relph, Senior Democratic Services Advisor E-Mail: mike.relph@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No.

REPORT OF
Strategic Director Place

TO
Property and Regeneration Briefing

ON 

24th February 2020

TITLE: Plot C1 off Stanley Street, Salford

RECOMMENDATIONS:
It is recommended that the City Mayor: 

1. Approves the subsidy from the Development Trust Account for the Salford Central 
project and

2. Authorises the shared legal service to complete any necessary legal 
documentation.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
English Cities fund has submitted a Development Proposal Notice (DPN) in 
accordance with the provisions of the Overarching Development Agreement for 
Salford Central in respect of the proposed development of Plot C1 off Stanley Street, 
Salford. Planning consent for a residential scheme was granted on 3rd October 2019 
for the erection of a 23-storey building with associated 6-storey podium block to 
provide 211 apartments, ground floor commercial uses and significant public realm 
investment.  The viability appraisal submitted as part of the DPN illustrates that the 
development is unviable without a subsidy of £4,752,484 from the Development Trust 
Account, set up to lock in overage from more profitable phases to cross subsidise 
less viable phases.  

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
None

Page 1

Agenda Item 3a



2

KEY DECISION: No

DETAILS:

Background

The City Council entered into an Overarching Development Agreement (ODA) with 
English Cities fund (ECf) dated 15th December 2006 for the comprehensive 
regeneration of the Salford Central area. 

The Agreement requires that ECf serves a Development Proposal Notice (DPN) for 
the development of a particular phase setting out: 

 A plan of the phase 
 An outline Phase Appraisal  
 An outline of the proposed planning application 
 Details of any Phase Conditions to be satisfied (eg planning consent, vacant 

possession, site assembly etc)
 Proposed Target Completion Date 

Plot C1 comprises the site of a former surface car park. The site is bounded by 
Trinity Way, the River Irwell and the Ordsall Chord and is shown edged red on the 
attached plan.  ECf acquired the land directly from Granada by agreement without 
the need for a Compulsory Purchase Order as such there is no additional land 
payment due to the Council.

Details

In accordance with the terms of the ODA, ECf has served a DPN.  The DPN 
included:

 A Phase Plan
 Phase Appraisal
 Site Investigation Report
 Planning Decision Notice

The proposed start on site date is 24th March 2020, the aspirational timescale for the 
development is c.32 months and target completion date is November 2022.  Planning 
consent was granted in October 2019 under reference 19/73721/REM for the 
erection of a landmark 23-storey building with associated 6-storey podium block to 
provide 211 apartments, ground floor commercial uses and significant public realm 

Page 2



3

investment, together with associated ancillary facilities and servicing and access, 
pursuant to outline planning permission 16/68325/OUT

Viability

Under the terms of the ODA, ECf are entitled to a return of 15% on development 
costs on each phase.  Each phase is subject to a viability test and ECf are only 
obliged to proceed with any phase where it is shown to be “viable” i.e. where ECf 
should get back all phase-specific development costs and a full developer’s return. 

The viability appraisal submitted with the DPN demonstrates that in order that ECf 
achieve its required level of return, a subsidy of £4,752,484 is required from the 
Salford Central Development Trust Account (DTA).  The DTA is provided for in the 
ODA with the intention that value created by the wider Salford Central regeneration 
project is “locked-in” with any overage achieved from a phase paid into the DTA and 
is used to cross subsidise development of non-viable phases, where required.  
Recently, the commercial developments at New Bailey have contributed to the DTA 
whereas the residential schemes have drawn from it.

Part of the overall cost of the C1 scheme is due to the extent of the required public 
realm works which are shared with the adjacent plot C2.  A contribution to the 
appraisal for plot C1 is made by C2 to recognise the shared cost and benefit from the 
public realm work.  The investment being made in this respect is in the order of 
£3.3m.

The viability appraisal for the scheme has been scrutinised and challenged by an 
independent third party consultant, particularly around the preliminaries, overheads, 
profit and risk allowance of the project, with responses received from ECf explaining 
and justifying the values within the appraisal.  The Council has had sight of the 
consultant’s report for review and is satisfied with the contents and justifications 
which are contained within it.  A contractor for the project was appointed by a direct 
award following an open book, 2 stage negotiation process overseen by independent 
advisers given the relationship between the contractor party and ECf.  There are a 
number of reasons for this approach including limited contractor availability in the 
marketplace and contractor covenant strength.  In addition, the contractor is already 
working on an adjacent residential phase and there are considered to be savings 
achievable from this due to supply chain continuity, several “key” sub-contractors 
having significant knowledge of the Salford Central development and ECF’s scope, 
quality and specification standards and the continuity benefits of senior management 
and site team remaining as part of the overall scheme. 

The use of the Development Trust Account to cross subsidise this unviable phase is 
as detailed above and is in accordance with the terms of the ODA.  Whilst the 
contribution required on this scheme is significant, a rationale for the level of costs on 

Page 3



4

this scheme has been provided by ECF and its technical advisors.  The actual 
contribution required will be dependent on the performance of the scheme in terms of 
both cost and sales values achieved as detailed above. It is in the interests of both 
ECF and the Council to minimise the drawdown of funds from the DTA, with any 
ultimate balance remaining at the end of the agreement being shared 50/50.

It is in the mutual interest of both ECf and the Council to ensure that any DTA 
subsidy is reduced to a minimum as as any surplus monies in the DTA at the end of 
the project will be available to the parties on a shared basis.  As with all the ECf 
project schemes an open and transparent process will be undertaken to confirm 
actual costs against the estimates in the appraisal and the actual DTA 
contribution/credit is only crystallised at financial close.  By way of example, the 
drawdown notice and accompanying appraisal for Timekeepers Square was forecast 
to contribute a very small amount of money to the DTA.  However, by the financial 
close of the scheme it actually contributed c.£1.5m.

ECf are aware of the burden being placed on the DTA and are reviewing the wider 
residential/commercial mix within the ODA area.  

ECf are aware of the Council’s requirements around social value and the 
development will embrace these objectives including apprentice targets, secondary 
school and tertiary education visits and maximising spend with local subcontractors 
and suppliers. A Social Value strategy is being worked up with the contractor and will 
be agreed with SCC.  

Recommendations

It is recommended that the City Mayor: 

 Approves the subsidy from the Development Trust Account for the Salford Central 
project and 

 Authorises the shared legal service to complete the legal documentation.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 
Great Eight – Economic Development 
Salford Central Regeneration

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:
No affordable housing is proposed within the scheme

Page 4



5

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 
Low

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Gaynor Corfe – Head of Property 0161 234 
3118

There are no comments/implications from a legal perspective.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Chris Mee - Strategic Finance 
Manager Ext 0434 

The use of the Development Trust Account to cross subsidise this unviable phase is 
as detailed above and is in accordance with the terms of the ODA.  Whilst the 
contribution required on this scheme is significant, a rationale for the level of costs on 
this scheme has been provided by ECF and its technical advisors.  The actual 
contribution required will be dependent on the performance of the scheme in terms of 
both cost and sales values achieved as detailed above. It is in the interests of both 
ECF and the Council to minimise the drawdown of funds from the DTA, with any 
ultimate balance remaining at the end of the agreement being shared 50/50. 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
There are no procurement implications from this report

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
There are no HR implications from this report

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
The C1 development will incorporate a number of sustainability measures including 
surface water drainage attenuation, minimising off site spoil disposal, reduced water 
consumption, LED lighting, occupancy sensor controlled lighting and a PV roof panel 
system.  The building design also incorporates improved ’u’ value and air 
permeability performance that betters Building Regulations standards and 
incorporates heat recovery measures and heat pumps within the M&E services 
systems.  In addition, no car parking is being provided within the development.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:
Finance

Page 5



6

CONTACT OFFICER: Steven Keigher TEL NO: 779 6087

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:
Ordsall

Page 6



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972

Decision:  The City Mayor asked to 
approve the appointment of a preferred 
Private Sector Partner to deliver the 
Salford Crescent and University District 
Masterplan, following a rigorous 
procurement exercise through a 
Competitive Dialogue procedure, and 
the outcome of the evaluation of 
submitted final tenders.

Committee:  City Mayor Property & 
Regeneration Briefing

Date:  24 February 2020

Category of exemption applied: Paragraph 3

Public Interest Test Questionnaire
This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you 
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality.

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in 
public debate about current issues?

No

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 
certain decisions? 

Yes

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff?

No

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers? 

No

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives? 

No

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)  

No

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-
making or examples of malpractice?

No

Page 7

Agenda Item 5a



Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact 
occurred?

No

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 
public any useful information?

Yes

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 
without giving the public any useful information? 

Yes

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation?

No

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving 
the public useful information? 

No

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or 
individuals at risk? 

No

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general 
would benefit more from information being withheld? 

 

Yes

Justification of decision

The report contains legal and financial information relating to both the Authority 
and the preferred bidder in relation to the contractual relationships regarding the 
delivery of the Salford Crescent and University District Masterplan. The 
Masterplan is a collaborative initiative between Salford City Council and the 
University of Salford, as such the appointment of the preferred bidder also 
requires approval by the latter and until such time this information needs to 
remain confidential so as not to prejudice that decision.

Name and Title: Dan Welsh, Principal Planning Officer 
Date: 13 February 2020

Page 8


	Agenda
	3a Plot C1, Off Stanley Street, Ordsall
	5a Crescent and University Masterplan - Appointment of Private Sector Partner

